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CONDITION
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W Altered [J Unaolrered 1 Moved ) Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a 2-1/2 story brick, Federal-style
house with a flush gable internal end chimney on the
east end of the two bay main (south) facade. The
facade is laid up in Flemish bond with a three-course
cornice consisting of a row of stretchers, a row of
sawtooth-1ike angled bricks, and another row of headers.
A one story porch with turned posts has been screened
in. The gable ends, laid in common bond, have heavy
buttresses on either eaves end. Three courses of
stretchers run along the slope; the chimney cap consists
of two projecting courses.

The rear facade is also laid in commond bond. It
has two windows on the first floor and one on the second.
Several one story additions have been added on
the east end. Part of the e#dternmost section may be an

older outbuilding since it has a large central chimney
and gable ends similar to those of the main house block.

In the cemetary are stones of the Dyer, Young and

Rhodes families. The oldest legible date is 2 January 1822

(Henry Dyer).
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the United States Air Force as a pilot in World
War 1. From 1944 to 1946 he was secretary-
treasurer of the company, becoming its presi-
dent in 1946.

The children of Douglas and Helen Farquhar
are:

Norman Farquhar: His wife’s name is Ran-
dolph Jemuings Farquharv. He is a partner of
the Investment House of Alexander Brown &
Sons and resides at 3301 N. St., N. W., George-
town, D. C.

Gordon Nesbitt Farquhar: His wiie’s name is
Virginia Fischer Farquhar. He is a Secretary
of the Group Division of the Aetna Life Insur-
ance Company and resides in Bloomfield, Conn,

Margaret Farquhar Adelfio: Her husband’s
name is Antonio Adelfio. They reside in the
house built by her Grandfather Allan Farquhar
on part of The Cedars farm. Antonio has
organized and is operating the Bethesda Trave!l

Center at Waverly Avenue, Bethesda.

Ann Farquhar Forbush: Her husband’s name
name is Wm. Byron Forbush II, and they reside
at Ballimore Friends School, Baltimore, Md.,
where he is Headmaster.

Of frame construetion, built and added to by
William Fargnhar, the old Cedars house shown
on 304, was occupicd by the family from 1838
until 1901, when it was replaced with the present
modern frame house, which is also built for two-
family oceupancy. It is believed that there was
a log house on the farm when purchased in
1838. The original house was arranged for two
families, Ellen having the west part for her own
use,

Mrs. Franeis Hallowell, widow of Fraucis
Hallowell, formerly of Rockland, has oceupied
the “WEST CEDARS’’ part of the old home
for the past thirty years.

The Mansion

north of the Poolesville-White’s Ferry.

THE neat brick house shown, high on a hill

Road—is believed to have been built
around the year 1800. A part of the lower addi-
tion was detached, but the present owner joined
this to the main structure by adding a 9 x 14 ft.
powder room and bath, so that the house is now
92 ft. long.

Mrs. Georgiana M. Carter purchased this
interesting place, with 20 acres of land, in 1956
from Elizabeth Oxley Brown. Mrs. Brown was
the daughter of Charles W, Oxley, and is a sister
of John Oxley of Rockville, a prominent at-
torney in Montgomery County for many years.
The grandmother of Mr. Oxley and Mrs. Brown
was a Chilton—Emily Jane Chilton Oxley—
which leads us to the Chiltons, prominent in this
area for a century, and owners of vast tracts of
land here.

From our research we find that Joshua
Chilton was born July 26, 1758. His real estate
purchases and activities were vast and numer-
ous up to the time of his death Febrnary 15,
1847, at the age of 89 years, as shown by the
land records of Rockville.

Joshna first married Elizabeth Fouch and
they had four children. The third child—a
daughter, Lovice, born February 10, 1787, be-

JOSHUA CHILTON
BRICK

NO. 130 D-1 CA. 1800
came the wife of Jesse Oxley, and her daughter,
Emily Jane Chilton Oxley (married her cousin
by the same name) was the mother of Charles
W. Oxley.

Joshua next married Anne Taylor and by her
he had five children, between the years 1795 and
18086.

The Chiltons, it is reported, came from the
Northern Neck of Virginia, and attained emi-
nence in the profession of arms, as well as in
law and medicine. They came from an old
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vonalish family whose orizin was iFvench, writ-
ten Jde Chilton, In Northumberland i the four-
teenth century. 1t 1= believed that Joshua Chil-
ton bailt the pretty mansion show.

From the records we find several deeds to
Joshua Chilton recorded—Ilor the “*lands of
James Reed. Deccased ™ ; another foy - Part ot
John's Delight, Gatton’s Good Luck, Mt Mtna
and Pheasants Nest,"" according to the resurvey
of June 1769. Another, that *‘the said Isaae
Hite, for a consideration of $6,800 lawful money
from Joshua Chilton™"; another, ““an Island in
the Potomac of 30 acres, known as Harwood’s
I<land " ; and so on.

Auninventory of record in Rockville of Joshua
Chilton’s estate at the time of his death in-
cluded : Male Servants valued at £3,251 ; Females
at 4,552 furniture and bedding valued at $257
mmcluding a barouche and single harness valued
at $160. Total value $8,220.00.

There are several marble grave markers on
the tarm, among them *“Matilda ('hilton Young,
diecd  February 16, 1835,”7 another marker
Catherime Rhodes, consort of George Rhodes,

—leparted this life December 10, 1830,’7 and

another—*Hillyer Dyver, departed this life
Janunary 2, 1822, aged 68 vears.”’

Joshua Chilton outlived all of his children
and it is the understanding of the Oxleys that
he left the place to his second wife, but he made
no will; hence his estate inventory was on the
court records.

The land records indicate that Joshua Chilton
purchased ““The Mansion’’ property from
Richard J. Bowie of Beeding, and other records
indicate a tract of land called John’s Delight
and part of Concord (no dates given), total
41615 acres, ‘“with an estimated annual value of
$200 current money.’”’ The inventory at the time
of his death lists The Brick Mansion, 22 feet
square, 2 stories high with basement, a frame
addition 16 x 31 ft., and a detached brick kitchen
and slave quarters 16 x 30 feet; and other build-
ings of various deseriptions—all in a bad state
of repair,

In restoring the above buildings the present
owner replaced the walls of the frame portion of
the house with matehing bricks on a new foun-
dation, leaving beautiful hand-hewn beams of
native vellow poplar and oak. At the rear of the
house was added a glassed-in family room 14 x
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35 ft. and a smail bedroom overlooking the
mountains.

Rambling through thiz “*mansion,”” which ix
92 feet long, is a real treat, for one who ap-
preciates harmony of color, and decoration.
with furnizhings which are useful as well us
beautiful, There 15 an air of luxury, without
ostentation—emphasis on comfort.

Intering through the six panelled door, into
the living room, in the main 22 foot square brick
house, we are impressed with the antique fea-
tures, a huge tireplace with old wood mautel,
and another <ix panetled door, leading to the din-
ing room, with another old fireplace, back to
hack, with old mantel of wood. In one corner of
the living room, is the original spiral staivway,
feading to a very well lighted hedroom and bath
on seeond tleor, windows on three sides, with
mountain views, very appealing outlook.

Beyond the dining room, there is a modern
kitchen, light and roomy. All these rooms have
exposed beams, of oak and poplar, stained
brown. Still further toward the east of the
kitehen, is the former “*breezeway,”” 9 ft x 14 1t
now a powder room, with bath. All these rooms,
whiech were detached. of wood construction (east
of the main brick structure of about the year
1800), have been reconstructed of bhrick, on new
foundations, and painted white.

A Teature of iuis real “manor house,” is the
new glassed-in porch 35 feet long and 14 tfect
wide, along the north side of the other rooms.
Views of Virginia mountains, and ncarby
“Stronghold,”’ are pleasing features of the
scene. The well mowed fields lead down a slope
to a wood lot, not far from a bend in the Poto-
mac. A neat and substantial barny, large enough
for several riding horses, is noticed, to the left.

Modern all-vear comforts have been provided,
by a deep well, automatic electric pump, base
board heat, and cicetrie lights throughout. The
kind of comfortable country estate, with a
strong appeal, to retired couples, in a sctting
which commands extensive outlooks, in all
directions. A desirable neighborhood, of ‘*old
homes.”’

Mrs. Georgiana Carter came to Washington,
D.C. 44 years ago from Missouri and married
Lt. James Morse Carter (now deceased), a
direct descendant of Robert (King) Carter of
Tidewater, Virginia. They have one daughter,
Mrs. Joe C. Haves, who with her hushband is on
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furlongh from an assignment in Africa with the
International Development Services, Ine.
Mrs. Carter has been recognized as a skilled

M:1€-10
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interior decorator, whose talenis have been dis-
played on some of the notable old homes in
Georgetown and vieinity.,

The Oaks I

I the numerons houses in Montgomery
O (fonnty with which the Riggs family has
heen identified, the one shown is one
of the least well known, although it was in
possession of the family for well over a eentury.
Perhaps this is hecause of its loeation on n sel-
dom travelled eross-conntry road whick termi-
nates at this farm.

Reuben Riggs, born in May, 1775, a son of
Samuel and Amelia (Dorsey) Riggs was the
owner of 800 acres of about the best farm land
in Montgomery County at the time of his death
in 1829, The house shown below of logs and
frame, believed to have been built before 1800,
was on the estate of Reuben. It was part of a
much larger house, built a century later, an ad-

dition barely shown to the right in the photo-
graph. It is believed that the original part

shown above was built by Reuben’s father, Sam-
uel, for Reuben lived for many years in another
hounse nearby on the same plantation. (See The
Oaks 11.) Namuel of R, son of Reuben, accord-
ing to family tradition, was the first to live in
the house,

Reunhen married in 1805 Mary Willson
Thomas, a danghter of Major Hezekiah Thomas
and inherited a part of his large estate from
his wife’s father in addition to his inheritance
from his father, Samuel.

When Samuel Riges of R. was twenty years
old in 1833, he married Mileah Wayman Griffith,
and they established themselves at The Oaks,
and had nine children. It is supposed that Sam-
nel of R., before his marriage had lived in his
father's house on the adjoining farm—mnow Oaks
Il—and that the older part of the old house at
The Oaks was reconditioned for the bride and
groom. Samuel of R. built up an even larger
ostate than his father Reuben, owning almost
a thousand acres of prime farm land.

Samuel of R. was active and highly regarded
by the electorate of his county. Ile was a coun-
ty commissioner from 1836 to 1861, served in
the State Constitutional Convention of 1867,

was elected the next year to the General Assem-
bly of Maryland, and was reclected in 1872 sery
ing until 1874. Mileah, his wife, died in Febrn
ary, 1874, and in October, 1875, he married
[ilizabeth H, Worthington, widow™ of Thomas
Worthington, Samuel Riggs of R, died af The
Onks in Octoher, 1882, )

Upon the death of Samuel of R. the home-
stead, including about five hundred acres of
land, passed to his son, Samuel, Jr., 11 who in
1876 had married Laura Virginia Howard Neel.
widow of Thomas Necl. Of the four sons aud
two daughters of this union, the old home again
passed to a Samuel Riggs, Jr., I1L, who was
born at The Oaks in 1880, In December, 1904,
he was married in Baltimore to Mary Darring-
ton C'hristopher who was a danghter of James
Carstairs Christoplier and Henrvietta Griffith
Christopher.

Samuel Riggs, Jr. 111, and Mary Christopher
Riggs had one danghter, Henrietta; she is the
wife of Robert H. Chichester of Oatland, and
one son Samuel Riggs IV, who was a graduate of
the University of Maryland. Samuel Riggs Jr.
IIT was for a time a member of the County
Board of Commissioners and Judge of the
Police Court until his death in 1929, In 1930
the old home was sold to the late Dr. James

BEFORE 1800

D8  SAMUEL RIGGS

FRAME
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